KEYSTONE OAKS SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF SCHOOL DIRECTORS REORGANIZATION MEETING 7:00 P.M. - DECEMBER 3, 2019 BOARD ROOM

MINUTES

Call to Order	CALL TO ORI	DER		
Temporary Chair	Ms. Lane, Solicitor and serving as Temporary Chair, called the Reorganization Meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.			
Attendance	Those present included: Mr. Cesario, Ms. Crowell, Mr. LaPorte, Ms. Lindsey, Mrs. Lydon, Mr Raso, and Ms. Shaw. Also present were Dr. Stropkaj, Superintendent; Dr. Varley, Director of Curriculum, Instruction, Assessment and Staff Development; Mr. Joseph Kubiak, Business Manager/Board Secretary; Mrs. Christina Lane, Solicitor; and Mrs. Maureen S. Myers, Assistan Board Secretary/Recording Secretary			
	Mrs. Donahue and Ms. Evans were absent.			
	Mrs. Wong swor	re in the newly ele	cted Board of School Directors.	
Nominations for President	Ms. Lane accept	ed the following n	omination for Board President:	
	Mr. Cesario nominated Ms. Shaw.			
Nominations Closed	Ms. Lindsey moved to close the nomination for President, seconded by Ms. Crowell.			
		Motion carried 7-0		
Unanimous Vote for	AYES	NAYS	ABSENT	
President	Mr. LaPorte Ms. Crowell Mr. Cesario Ms. Shaw Mr. Raso Mrs. Lydon Ms. Lindsey		Mrs. Donahue Ms. Evans	
Ms. Shaw Elected	Ms. Shaw was elected President by a 7-0 vote.			
President	Ms. Lane turned the gavel over to Ms. Shaw			
Nominations for Vice	President Shaw	called for nominat	ions for Vice President.	

President	Ms. Lindsey nominated Mrs. Lydon.				
Nominations Closed	Ms. Crowell moved to close the nomination for Vice President, seconded by Mr. Cesario.				
			Motion carried 7-0		
Unanimous Vote for Vice President	AYES	NAYS	ABSENT		
	Ms. Crowell Ms. Lindsey Mrs. Lydon Mr. Raso Mr. Cesario Mr. LaPorte Ms. Shaw		Mrs. Donahue Ms. Evans		
Mrs. Lydon Elected Vice President	Mrs. Lydon was elected Vice President by a vote of 7-0				
Reorganization Adjourned	On the motion of was adjourned a	-	s. Lindsey, seconded by Mrs. Lydon, the Reorganization Meeting 06 p.m.		
			Motion passed 7-0		
			Respectfully submitted,		
			Joseph A. Kubiak Board Secretary		
			Maureen S. Myers Assistant Board Secretary Recording Secretary		

BOARD OF SCHOOL DIRECTORS

WORK SESSION Tuesday, December 3, 2019 7:00 PM

MINUTES

Call to Order	President Patricia Ann Shaw called the meeting to order at 7:07 p.m.			
Pledge	The meeting opened with the pledge to the flag.			
Attendance	Raso and Ms. Shaw. Also present were Dr. Wi Varley, Director of Curriculum, Instruction, As	Ir. Michael Brungo, Solicitor; and Mrs. Maureen		
	Mrs. Donahue and Ms. Evans were absent.			
Preliminary Budget Presentation	Mr. Kubiak presented the 2020/2021 Prelimina	ry Budget to the Board.		
Board President's Report	BOARD PRESIDENT'S REPORT – Ms. Pa	tricia Ann Shaw		
	The following action items will be considered a Business/Legislative Meeting:	at the December 10, 2019		
	BOARD ACTION REQUESTED			
Board Minutes	BOARD MINUTES			
	It is recommended that the Board approve the V 2019 and the Business/Legislative Minutes of N			
For Information Only	FOR INFORMATION ONLY			
	I. Parkway West Career and Technology Ce	enter Report Ms. Annie Shaw		
	II. SHASDA Report	Mr. Santo Raso		
	• Mr. Raso recapped the SHASDA mee	eting that took place at Upper St. Clair		
	III. PSBA/Legislative Report	Mrs. Theresa Lydon		
	IV. News from the Boroughs			

	• Dormont – Police have been out at bus stops.
Executive Session	EXECUTIVE SESSION – There was no Executive Session held prior to this evenings Reorganization/Work Session meeting.
Superintendent's Report	SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT – Dr. William P. Stropkaj
	The following action items will be considered at the December 10, 2019 Business/Legislative Meeting:
	BOARD ACTION REQUESTED
Policy 805	SECOND READING POLICY 805: EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE
	It is recommended that the Board approve the SECOND READING of Policy 805: <i>Emergency Preparedness and Response</i> .
Policy 805.1	SECOND READING POLICY 805.1: RELATIONS WITH LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES
	It is recommended that the Board approve the SECOND READING of Policy 805.1: <i>Relations with Law Enforcement Agencies</i> .
Policy 805.2	SECOND READING POLICY 805.2: SCHOOL SECURITY PERSONNEL
	It is recommended that the Board approve the SECOND READING of Policy 805.2: <i>School Security Personnel</i> .
Policy 833	SECOND READING POLICY 833: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
	It is recommended that the Board approve the SECOND READING of Policy 833: <i>Professional Development</i> .
Policy 856	SECOND READING POLICY 856: EVALUATION OF EMPLOYEES
	It is recommended that the Board approve the SECOND READING of Policy 856: <i>Evaluation of Employees</i> .
Removal of Policies	REMOVAL OF POLICIES
	It is recommended that the Board abolish the following policies:
	Policy 313: Performance Evaluation of Administrative Employees Policy 333: Professional Growth Guidelines
	Policy 412: Evaluation of Professional and Temporary Professional Employees Policy 512: Evaluation of Classified Employees
Pupil Personnel Report	PUPIL PERSONNEL REPORT – Dr. William P. Stropkaj
	The following action items will be considered at the December 10, 2019

	Business/Legislative	Meeting:		
	BOARD ACTION REQUESTED			
Big Brothers Big Sisters	BIG BROTHER BIG SISTERS BIGS IN BLUE PROGRAM			
Bigs in Blue Programs		recommends that the Board ap Bigs in Blue to take place at the 9/2020 school year.		e
	For Information Only	Y		
	This is a partnership	between the District and the N	It. Lebanon/Do	rmont Police Departments.
	A discussion was	had in regard to the Big Broth	ner Big Sisters I	Bigs in Blue Program.
	A discussion was	had in regard to the Best Frie	nds Club at the	Middle School.
Personnel Report		ORT – Ms. Patricia A. Shaw		
	The following items Meeting.	will be considered at the Dece	mber 10, 2019	Business/Legislative
	BOARD ACTION	<u>REQUESTED</u>		
Resignation	RESIGNATION			
	The Administration recommends that the Board accept the following resignation:			ng resignation:
	Name	Position		Effective Date
	Deana Cannon	Food Service Worker – High	n School	November 8, 2019
Appointments	APPOINTMENTS			
	1. Food Service W	<u>orker</u>		
	The Administration recommends that the Board approve the following food service worker:			
	Name	Hire Date	Hourly Wage	
	Robin Phillips	November 20, 2019	\$10.27/hour	
Public Comment	PUBLIC COMMEN	NT – None		
Adjournment	ADJOURNMENT			
	On the motion of Ms 8:11 p.m.	. Lindsey, seconded by Mr. La	aPorte, the meet	ing was adjourned at

5

Motion passed 7-0

Respectfully submitted,

Joseph A. Kubiak Board Secretary

Maureen S. Myers Assistant Board Secretary Board Recording Secretary

		Policy No.	805
KEYSTONE OAKS S	CHOOL DISTRICT	Section	OPERATIONS
Policy		Title	EMERGENCY EVACUATION OF SCHOOLS PREPAREDNESS
Guide	SCHOOLS	Adopted	AND RESPONSE AUGUST 21, 1989

Last Revised MARCH 19, 2001

	POLICY NO. 805 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSEEVACUATION OF SCHOOLS	
Section 1	Purpose	
	The Board recognizes its responsibility for the safety of students, staff, visitors and facilities. Therefore, the Board shall provide facilities, equipment and training necessary to protect against hazards and emergencies, including but not limited to natural disasters, hazardous chemicals, fires, weapons, bomb threats, intruders, terrorism, communicable diseases and pandemics. Advance planning, training, practice and comprehensive implementation are key components in protecting the safety and security of the school community. The following guidelines shall apply to emergencies that affect the operation of the schools of the District.	
Section 2	Authority The District, in cooperation with the county Emergency Management Agency and the Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency (PEMA), shall develop and implement a comprehensive disaster response and emergency preparedness plan, consistent with the guidelines developed by PEMA and other applicable state requirements.	22 PA Code 10.24 35 Pa. C.S.A. 7701
	The Board shall also utilize the resources of and comply with the requirements of the Pennsylvania Department of Health, the Pennsylvania Department of Education, and local law enforcement agencies.	Pol. 805.1

	POLICY NO. 805 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSEEVACUATION OF SCHOOLS	
	The Board requires that emergency preparedness, emergency evacuation and school security drills be conducted at intervals required by state law.	35 Pa. C.S.A. 7701 SC 1517, 1518
	The District's system of emergency preparedness shall ensure that the health and safety of students and staff are safeguarded, the time necessary for instructional purposes is not unduly diverted, minimum disruption to the educational program occurs, and students are helped to learn self-reliance and trained to respond sensibly to emergency situations.	
	All threats to the safety of the schools shall be identified by appropriate personnel and responded to promptly in accordance with the plan for emergency preparedness as promulgated by the Superintendent, consistent with established guidelines.	
	Bomb threats and reports of fire shall normally require the evacuation of the threatened school or building.	
		SC 1518
Section 3	Definitions	
	School security drill – a planned exercise, other than a fire drill or natural disaster drill, designed to practice procedures to respond to an emergency situation that may include, but is not limited to, an act of terrorism, armed intruder situation or other violent threat.	SC 1517
	School Safety and Security Assessment – a strategic evaluation of a school entity's facilities and programs used to identify potential safety and security threats.	SC 1301-B
Section 43	Delegation of Responsibility	
	The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with relevant stakeholders, including parents/guardians, students, staff, community agencies, local law enforcement agencies and first responders, during the development and implementation of the emergency preparedness plan. procedures for the handling of school emergencies which include:	SC 1517

POLICY NO. 805 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSEEVACUATION OF SCHOOLS	
The Superintendent or designee shall implement a communication system to notify parents/guardians of the evacuation or sheltering of students and to alert the entire school community when necessary.	
Annually, on or before April 10, the Superintendent shall certify that emergency evacuation drills and school security drills have been conducted in the manner prescribed by law.	SC 1517
In accordance with state law and regulations, the Superintendent shall execute a memorandum of understanding with each local police department that has jurisdiction over school property.	Pol. 805.1 SC 1303-A 22 PA Code 10.11
The Board directs the Superintendent or designee to periodically complete a School Safety and Security Assessment in accordance with the provisions of law and established criteria, based on the needs of the district and availability of funding and resources.	SC 1301-B, 1303-B
 a plan for the prompt and safe evacuation of the schools and safe dispersal of students from school property, which shall be practiced monthly in fire drills conducted in accordance with the law; the conduct of bus evacuation drills twice a year in accordance with the law; a plan for the sequestration of students in a safe place other than school; design a communications system to alert the whole school community when necessary and to notify parents of the evacuation of students; the immediate notification of appropriate administrative personnel whenever any employee becomes aware of an emergency or impending emergency; cooperation with local agencies such as the police department, fire department, and civil defense; instruction of staff members in the techniques of handling emergencies; and the continual evaluation of effectiveness of emergency planning in preparing the schools to cope with disaster. 	

	POLICY NO. 805 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSEEVACUATION OF SCHOOLS	
Section 4	Guidelines	
	Emergency Planning	
	The emergency preparedness plan shall be accessible in each district building, be reviewed at least annually, and be modified as necessary. A copy of the plan shall be made accessible to the county Emergency Management Agency, each local police department and each local fire department that have jurisdiction over school property. The District shall obtain assurances from each appropriate agency that the emergency preparedness plan will be safeguarded and maintained confidentially.	22 PA Code 10.24 35 Pa. C.S.A. 7701 Pol. 804
	Annually, appropriate information regarding the emergency preparedness plan shall be communicated to students, parents/guardians, staff, the community and other relevant stakeholders.	
	Annually, by September 30, the District shall assemble information required to assist local police and fire departments in responding to an emergency. The required information shall be deployed immediately to the Incident Command Post in the event of an emergency incident or disaster.	22 PA Code 10.24 35 Pa. C.S.A. 7701 Pol. 805.1
	Schools and school buses or transportation vehicles owned or leased by the District shall be made available to local, county and state officials for emergency planning and exercises.	35 Pa. C.S.A. 7701
	Continuity of Student Learning/Core Operations	
	In the event of an emergency, local, county or state officials may require that schools be made available to serve as mass-care facilities. Local, county or state officials may also utilize district-owned buses and other transportation vehicles. The Superintendent or designee shall determine whether schools shall be closed, or the educational program suspended, to safeguard student and staff health and safety.	35 Pa. C.S.A. 7701 Pol. 804
	State officials may also direct schools to close in order to mitigate the spread of infection or illness in designated emergencies.	35 Pa. C.S.A. 7301 et seq

POLICY NO. 805 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSEEVACUATION OF SCHOOLS	
The District shall make provisions in the emergency preparedness plan for the continuity of student learning during school closings or excessive absences, in accordance with law. This may include, as appropriate, activities qualifying as instructional days for fulfilling the minimum required days of instruction under the law. Instructional activities may include:	SC 1501, 1506
1. Web-based instruction.	
2. Mailed lessons and assignments.	
The continuity of core operations such as payroll and ongoing communication with staff, students and parents/guardians shall be an essential part of the emergency preparedness plan.	
Education and Training	
Students and staff members shall be instructed and shall practice how to respond appropriately to emergency situations.	SC 1517, 1518
Effective infection control and prevention education and procedures, such as frequent hand washing and cough/sneeze etiquette, shall be encouraged continually to help limit the spread of germs at district schools.	Pol. 203, 203.1
The District shall provide mandatory training to school employees on school safety and security based on the district's needs and in accordance with law. Training shall address any combination of one (1) or more of the following areas:	SC 102, 1310-B Pol. 833
1. Situational awareness.	
2. Trauma-informed approaches.	Pol. 833
3. Behavioral health awareness.	
4. Suicide and bullying awareness.	Pol. 256, 809
5. Substance use awareness.	Pol. 227, 851

POLICY NO. 805 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE <mark>EVACUATION OF SCHOOLS</mark>	
6. Emergency training drills, including fire, natural disaster, active shooter, hostage situation and bomb threat.	
7. Identification or recognition of student behavior that may indicate a threat to the safety of the student, other students, school employees, school facilities, the community or others.	
Employees are required to complete a minimum of three (3) hours of training every five (5) years.	SC 1310-B
Required Drills	
Emergency Preparedness Drill -	
The Board directs district schools to conduct a disaster response or emergency preparedness plan drill at least annually, in accordance with the provisions of law.	35 Pa. C.S.A. 7701
Fire Drills -	
The Board directs each district school to conduct fire drills at least once a month during the school year, in accordance with the provisions of law.	SC 1517, 1518
School Security Drills -	
The Board directs each district school to conduct a school security drill within ninety (90) days of the beginning of each school year. The school security drill shall be conducted while school is in session, with students present.	SC 1517
The school security drill may take the place of a fire drill for the month in which it is conducted.	
The Superintendent or designee may conduct additional school security drills in district schools after the first ninety (90) days of the school year. Up to two (2) additional school security drills per school year may be conducted in place of the required fire drills for the month in which they are conducted.	SC 1517

		POLICY NO. 805 SENCY PREPAREDNESS AND SEEVACUATION OF SCHOOLS	
The S	uperintendent	or designee shall:	SC 1517
1.	employees in	ruction and training of students and schoo n procedures for conducting school securit sponding to emergency situations.	
2.	and the eme	equest assistance from local law enforcem rgency management agency prior to a school security drill.	ent
3.	school build	nts/guardians of the students attending the ing where the school security drill is a advance of conducting the drill.	
Bus E	vacuation Dri	ills -	
		safety drills shall be conducted twice a ye the provisions of law.	ar, SC 1517 75 Pa. C.S.A. 45:
Safe2	Say Somethin	<u>g Program</u>	
proceed from to accord frame respondemeng provide	dures for asses the Safe2Say S dance with law work within w nd to program gency dispatch le appropriate	he Superintendent or designee to develop ssing and responding to reports received Something anonymous reporting program, v. The procedures shall establish a which district administration and staff will reports, coordinate with the county center(s) and local law enforcement, and assessment and response for the safety an , staff and school facilities.	
proceed from to accord frame respon emerg provid securi	dures for asses the Safe2Say S dance with law work within w nd to program gency dispatch le appropriate ty of students,	ssing and responding to reports received Something anonymous reporting program, v. The procedures shall establish a which district administration and staff will reports, coordinate with the county center(s) and local law enforcement, and assessment and response for the safety an , staff and school facilities.	in
proceed from to accord frame respon emerg provid securi <u>Summ</u> Emerg the ev	dures for asses the Safe2Say S dance with law work within w nd to program gency dispatch le appropriate ty of students, hary of Emerg gency provisio ent it is neces	ssing and responding to reports received Something anonymous reporting program, v. The procedures shall establish a which district administration and staff will reports, coordinate with the county center(s) and local law enforcement, and assessment and response for the safety and , staff and school facilities.	in d
proceed from to accord frame respon emerg provid securi Summ Emerg the ev as foll	dures for asses the Safe2Say S dance with law work within w nd to program gency dispatch le appropriate ty of students, hary of Emerg gency provision ent it is necessions:	ssing and responding to reports received Something anonymous reporting program, v. The procedures shall establish a vhich district administration and staff will reports, coordinate with the county center(s) and local law enforcement, and assessment and response for the safety an , staff and school facilities. <u>ency Procedures</u> ons for each school to use in sary to evacuate a building are	in d 1517, 1518
proceed from to accord frame respon emerg provid securi <u>Summ</u> Emerg the ev	dures for asses the Safe2Say S dance with law work within w nd to program gency dispatch le appropriate ty of students, mary of Emerg gency provision ent it is necession ows:	ssing and responding to reports received Something anonymous reporting program, v. The procedures shall establish a vhich district administration and staff will reports, coordinate with the county center(s) and local law enforcement, and assessment and response for the safety and , staff and school facilities.	in d 1517, 1518

POLICY NO. 805 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSEEVACUATION OF SCHOOLS		
Myrtle Castle Shannon Library		
Middle School	KOHS, Dormont Elementary	
High School	KOMS, Dormont Elementary	
School Code		
Board Policy		
Previously Revised	: March 19, 2001	
References:		
	P.S. Sec. 102, 1301-B, 1302.1-A, 1303-A, 310-B, 1501, 1506, 1517, 1518	
State Board of Education Regulations – 22 PA Code Sec. 10.11, 10.24		
Health and Safety – 35 Pa. C.S.A. Sec. 7301 et seq, 7701		
Pennsylvania Vehicle Code – 75 Pa. C.S.A. Sec. 4552		
Board Policy – 203	, 203.1, 227, 256, 804, 805.1, 809, 851	

		Policy No.	<u>805.1</u> 25
KEYSTONE OAKS SCHOOL DISTRICT		Section	OPERATIONS
Policy	KEYSTONE OAKS SCHOOLS	Title	MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING WITH LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT SAFE SCHOOLS RELATIONS WITH LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES
Guide		Adopted	SEPTEMBER 17, 2009

Last Revised _____

	POLICY NO. 805.1 825 <u>MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING WITH LOCAL</u> <u>LAW ENFORCEMENT SAFE SCHOOLSRELATIONS</u> WITH LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES	
Section 1	<u>Purpose</u>	
	The Board recognizes that cooperation with law enforcement agencies is considered essential for protecting students and staff, maintaining a safe environment in schools, and safeguarding district property.	
	The District is required by Section 1303 – A (c) of the School code to develop and have in place Memoranda of Understanding with local law enforcement agencies which identify procedures to be followed when an incident involving an act of violence or possession of a weapon by any person, occurs on school property. The Board hereby establishes procedures for the modification and renewal of such Memoranda of Understanding.	
Section 2	Authority	
	It shall be the policy of the Board to establish and maintain a cooperative relationship between the school district and local police departments in maintaining school safety and security; responding to school safety and security reports; and reporting and resolution of incidents that occur on school property, at any school-sponsored activity, or on any conveyance providing transportation to or from a school or school-sponsored activity.	22 PA Code 10.1 SC 1303-A Pol. 805, 805.2

	POLICY NO. 805.1825 MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING WITH LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT SAFE SCHOOLSRELATIONS WITH LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES	
	The Board directs the Superintendent to execute and update, on a biennial basis, a memorandum of understanding with each local police department that has jurisdiction over school property in accordance with state law and regulations.	SC 1303-A 22 PA Code 10.11
Section 3	Definition	
	Incident – an instance involving an act of violence; the possession of a weapon by any person; the possession, use, or sale of a controlled substance or drug paraphernalia as defined in the Pennsylvania Controlled Substance, Drug, Device and Cosmetic Act; the possession, use, or sale of alcohol or tobacco by any person on school property; or conduct that constitutes an offense listed under the Safe Schools Act.	SC 1303-A 22 PA Code 10.2 35 P.S. 780-102
Section 42	Guidelines	
	Memorandum of Understanding	
	In accordance with state law and regulations, the Superintendent shall execute and update, every two (2) years, a memorandum of understanding with each local police department that has jurisdiction over school property. The memorandum of understanding shall be signed by the Superintendent, police chief and each building principal, and be filed with the Office for Safe Schools.	SC 1303-A 22 PA Code 10.11
	All Memoranda of Understanding between the Keystone Oaks School District and local law enforcement agencies (the police departments of the Boroughs of Castle Shannon, Dormont and Green Tree, as well as the Township of Mt. Lebanon) may be amended, expanded or modified at any time upon the written consent of the parties, but in any event must be reviewed and reexecuted within two (2) years of the date of their original execution and every two (2) years thereafter.	
	In developing and updating the memorandum of understanding, the District shall consult and consider the State Board of Education model memorandum of understanding. If the district's memorandum of understanding with local law enforcement contains substantive differences from the State Board of	SC 1303-A 22 PA Code 10.11

POLICY NO. 805.1825 MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING WITH LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT SAFE SCHOOLSRELATIONS WITH LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES	
Education model memorandum of understanding, the Superintendent shall provide a written statement which identifies the differences and the reasons for the differences as part of the biennial filing with the Office for Safe Schools.	
The memorandum of understanding shall comply with state law and regulations and set forth procedures to be followed regarding incidents that include, but are not limited to, acts of violence, weapons, terroristic threats, controlled substances, alcohol and tobacco.	Pol. 218, 227, 250, 251, 823
The memorandum of understanding may specify other matters related to crime prevention mutually agreed upon by the Superintendent and the local police department that has jurisdiction over the school property.	SC 1303-A
Students With Disabilities	
The District shall provide a copy of its administrative regulations and procedures for behavior support, developed in accordance with the Special Education Plan, to each local police department that has jurisdiction over school property. Updated copies shall be provided each time the administrative regulations and procedures for behavior support are revised by the District.	22 PA Code 10.23, 14.104 Pol. 113, 113.1
The District shall invite representatives of each local police department that has jurisdiction over school property to participate in district training on the use of positive behavior supports, de-escalation techniques and appropriate responses to student behavior that may require intervention, as included in the district's Special Education Plan and positive behavior support program.	22 PA Code 10.23, 14.104. 14.133 Pol. 113, 113.1
Training	
The District shall invite representatives of each local police department that has jurisdiction over school property to participate in district training related to subjects that enhance understanding of and build positive relationships with students, which may include but not be limited to training on trauma- informed approaches, restorative practices, suicide awareness	Pol. 113.4, 216, 806, 809, 833, 847

POLICY NO. 805.1825 MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING WITH LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT SAFE SCHOOLSRELATIONS WITH LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES	
and prevention, child abuse recognition and reporting, maintaining confidentiality of students' personally identifiable information and maintaining professional adult/student boundaries.	
Referral to Law Enforcement	
The Superintendent or designee shall immediately report required incidents and may report discretionary incidents committed on school property, at any school-sponsored activity or on a conveyance providing transportation to or from a school or school-sponsored activity, to the local police department that has jurisdiction over the school's property, in accordance with state law and regulations, the procedures set forth in the memorandum of understanding with local law enforcement and Board policies.	SC 1303-A, 1302.1-A 22 PA Code 10.2, 10.21, 10.22 Pol. 103.1, 113.1 113.2, 218, 227, 250, 251, 823, 851, 904
Safe Schools Report	
Annually, by July 31, the Superintendent shall report on the designated form, to the Office for Safe Schools, all new incidents as required by state law.	SC 1303-A
Prior to submitting the Safe Schools report, the Superintendent and each police department having jurisdiction over school property shall do all of the following:	
 No later than thirty (30) days prior to the deadline for submitting the Safe Schools report to the Office for Safe Schools, the Superintendent shall submit the report to the police department that has jurisdiction over the relevant school property. The police department shall review the report and compare the data regarding criminal offenses and notification of law enforcement to determine whether the report accurately reflects police incident data. 	
 No later than fifteen (15) days prior to the deadline for the Superintendent to submit the report to the Office for Safe Schools, the police department shall notify the Superintendent, in writing, whether the report accurately 	

POLICY NO. 805.1 825 MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING WITH LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT SAFE SCHOOLSRELATIONS WITH LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES	
reflects police incident data. Where the police department determines that the report accurately reflects police incident data, the chief of police shall sign the report. Where the police department determines that the report does not accurately reflect police incident data, the police department shall indicate any discrepancies between the report and police incident data.	
3. Where a police department fails to take action as required above, the Superintendent shall submit the report to the Office for Safe Schools and indicate that the police department failed to take the required action.	
References:	
24 P.S. 13-1303 A (c)	
School Code – 24 P.S. Sec. 1302.1-A, 1303-A	
State Board of Education Regulations – 22 PA Code Sec. 10.1, 10.11. 10.2, 10.21, 10.22, 10.23, 10.24, 14.104, 14.133	
Controlled Substance, Drug, Device, and Cosmetic Act – 35 P.S. Sec. 780-102	
Board Policy – 103.1, 113, 113.1, 113.2, 113.4, 216, 218, 227, 250, 251, 823, 805, 805.2, 806, 809, 823, 833, 847, 851, 904	



Policy Guide



Policy No.	805.2
Section	OPERATIONS
T :41-	SCHOOL SECURITY
Title	SCHOOL SECURITY
	PERSONNEL

Adopted

Last Revised

	POLICY NO. 805.2 SCHOOL SECURITY PERSONNEL	
Section 1	<u>Authority</u>	
	The Board shall employ, contract for and/or assign staff to coordinate the safety and security of district students, staff, visitors and facilities.	
Section 2	Definitions	
	School security personnel – school police officers, school resource officers and school security guards.	SC 1301-C
	School Resource Officer (SRO) - a law enforcement officer commissioned and employed by a law enforcement agency whose duty station is located in the District and whose stationing is established by an agreement between the law enforcement agency and the District. The term includes an active certified sheriff or deputy sheriff whose stationing in the District is established by a written agreement between the county, the sheriff's office and the District.	SC 1301-C
	School police officer - a law enforcement officer employed by the District whose responsibilities, including work hours, are established by the District or an independent contractor or an individual provided through a third-party vendor who has been appointed in accordance with law, and who meets the requirements of contracted services personnel, in accordance with Board policy.	SC 1301-C, 1310- C, 1311-C Pol. 818
	School security guard - an individual employed by the District or a third-party vendor or an independent contractor who is	SC 1301-C, 1311- C, 1314-C

	POLICY NO. 805.2 SCHOOL SECURITY PERSONNEL	
	assigned to a school for routine safety and security duties, and has not been granted powers by the court to issue citations or detain individuals in accordance with law. An independent contractor or individual employed by a third-party vendor contracted with the District shall meet the requirements of contracted services personnel, in accordance with Board policy, and the provisions of applicable law.	Pol. 818
Section 3	Delegation of Responsibility	
	The Superintendent shall appoint a school administrator to serve as the School Safety and Security Coordinator, in accordance with law.	SC 1309-B
	The School Safety and Security Coordinator shall report directly to the Superintendent, and shall be responsible to:	SC 1309-B
	 Oversee all school police officers, School Resource Officers (SROs), school security guards. 	
	2. Review and provide oversight of all Board policies, administrative regulations and procedures related to school safety and security, and ensure compliance with federal and state laws and regulations regarding school safety and security.	
	The School Safety and Security Coordinator or designee shall be responsible for the following:	SC 1309-B
	1. Coordinate training and resources for students and staff related to situational awareness, trauma-informed approaches, behavioral health awareness, suicide and bullying, substance abuse, and emergency procedures and training drills, including fire, natural disaster, active shooter, hostage situation and bomb threat.	Pol. 146, 227, 236, 256, 805, 809, 851
	2. Coordinate a tour of the district's buildings and grounds biennially, or when a building is first occupied or reconfigured, with law enforcement and first responders responsible for protecting and securing the District to discuss and coordinate school safety and security matters.	

POLICY NO. 805.2 SCHOOL SECURITY PERSONNEL	
3. Serve as the liaison with law enforcement and other state committees and agencies on matters of school safety and security.	
4. Coordinate School Safety and Security Assessments and respond to School Safety and Security surveys, as applicable.	Pol. 805 SC 1305-B
By June 30 of each year, the School Safety and Security Coordinator or designee shall make a report to the Board at an executive session on the district's current safety and security practices, and identify strategies to improve school safety and security.	SC 1309-B Pol. 006
The Board directs the School Safety and Security Coordinator or designee to include the following information in the annual report:	
1. Reports of required emergency preparedness, fire, bus evacuation and school security drills.	Pol. 805
2. Information on required school safety and security training and resources provided to students and staff.	
 Safe2Say Something aggregate data, including a breakdown of Life Safety and Non-Life Safety reports received. 	
4. Behavioral health and school climate information, including aggregate data from surveys and assessments issued in the District, information on referrals and services accessed by students and families, and identification of additional resources needed in the District.	Pol. 235.1
 Office for Safe Schools reports for the previous year(s) and/or data collected to date for the current year. 	
6. Updates regarding the district's Memorandum of Understanding with local law enforcement agencies.	Pol 805.1
 Updates to laws, regulations and/or Board policies related to school safety and security. 	

	POLICY NO. 805.2	
	SCHOOL SECURITY PERSONNEL	
	 Information on tours, inspections and/or School Safety and Security Assessments of school facilities and programs. 	
	9. Information on grants or funding applied for and/or received in support of school safety and security efforts.	
	10. Recommendations for future improvements to school security.	
	A copy of the report shall be submitted to the state's School Safety and Security Committee.	SC 1309-B
	The Superintendent or designee shall implement job descriptions and procedures to address the responsibilities and requirements specific to each category of school security personnel in carrying out their duties.	
	School security personnel shall carry weapons, including firearms, in performance of their duties only if, and to the extent, authorized by the Board, including as provided in an agreement with a law enforcement agency for the stationing of a School Resource Officer or in a contract with an independent contractor or third-party vendor approved by the Board.	
Section 4	Guidelines	
	School Police Officers	
	The District shall employ or contract for one or more school police officers and apply to the appropriate court for appointment and powers of authority, in accordance with the provisions of law.	SC 1301-C, 1302- C, 1310-C, 1311-C, 818, 850
	The District shall annually report the following information regarding school police officers receiving required training to the PA Department of Education and the PA Commission on Crime and Delinquency:	SC 1303-C
	1. The district's name and the number of school police officers employed or contracted by the District.	

POLICY NO. 805.2 SCHOOL SECURITY PERSONNEL	
2. The municipalities comprising the District.	
3. The date and type of training provided to each school police officer.	
School police officers shall take and subscribe to the Oath of Office required by law.	SC 1304-C
The District shall request that the court grant the school police officer authority to carry a firearm, in accordance with law. The school police officer shall maintain all applicable firearm license and training requirements, in accordance with law and Board policy.	SC 1302-C, 1305-C
School police officers shall successfully complete required training, in accordance with law, and other required staff training, including district training on the use of positive behavior supports, de-escalation techniques and appropriate responses to behavior for students with disabilities, in accordance with law, regulations and Board policy.	SC 1305-C 22 PA Code 10.23, 14.104, 14.133 Pol. 113.1
School police officers shall possess and exercise the following duties:	SC 1306-C
1. Enforce good order in school buildings, on school buses or vehicles owned or leased by the district, and on school grounds.	
2. If authorized by the court, issue summary citations or detain individuals in school buildings, on school buses and on school grounds in the District until local law enforcement is notified.	
School police officers shall wear the assigned metallic shield or badge provided by the District in plain view when on duty.	SC 1307-C
School Security Guards	
The District shall employ or contract for one or more school security guards, in accordance with the provisions of law.	SC 1301-C, 1314-C Pol. 818, 850

	POLICY NO. 805.2 SCHOOL SECURITY PERSONNEL	
	shool security guards shall provide the following services, as rected by the District:	SC 1314-C
	1. School safety support services.	
	2. Enhanced campus supervision.	
	3. Assistance with disruptive students.	
	4. Monitoring visitors on campus.	Pol. 907
	5. Coordination with law enforcement officials, including school police officers.	
	6. Security functions which improve and maintain school safety.	
tra	chool security guards shall successfully complete required aining, in accordance with law, and applicable staff training in cordance with Board policy.	SC 1314-C
ma	chool security guards authorized to carry a firearm shall aintain an appropriate license and successfully complete quired firearm training in accordance with law.	SC 1314-C
Re	eferences:	
13	chool Code – 24 P.S. Sec. 1301-C, 1302-C, 1303-C, 1304-C, 305-B, 1305-C, 1306-C, 1307-C, 1309-B, 1309-C, 1310-C. 311-C, 1313-C, 1314-C	
	ate Board of Education Regulations – 22 PA Code Sec. 10.23, .104, 14.33	
	bard Policy – Pol. 006, 113.1, 146, 227, 235.1, 256, 805, 95.1, 809, 818, 850, 851, 907, 909	



Policy Guide



Policy No.	833	
Section	OPERATIONS	
Title	PROFESSIONAL	
	DEVELOPMENT	

Adopted

Last Revised

	POLICY NO. 833 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	
	THIS POLICY SHALL SUPERSEDE POLICY 333.	
Section 1	<u>Authority</u>	
	Continuing professional study and inservice training for administrative, professional, and support employees are prerequisites for continuing professional development, enhancing ability to complete responsibilities and/or maintaining certification.	
	The Board directs district employees to further their professional and personal advancement through courses of study, inservice training, conference attendance and professional development activities.	SC 517, 1205.1, 1205.2
Section 2	<u>Guidelines</u>	
	Courses of Study	
	Only courses of study that are preapproved by the Superintendent shall be eligible for reimbursement by the District. Documentary evidence of satisfactory completion of all study programs shall be required.	
	Reimbursement for credits for approved courses of study shall be made in accordance with terms of the administrative compensation plan or an individual contract, or collective bargaining agreement.	

POLICY NO. 833	
POLICY NO. 835 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	
All eligible employees shall submit a record and description of the attainment of approved credits to the Business Manager.	
Induction Plan	
The District shall comply with Department of Education requirements when developing, submitting and maintaining an induction plan. The District shall develop and submit the induction plan to the Department of Education for approval every six (6) years, as required by law and regulations. Prior to approval by the Board and submission to the Department of Education, the induction plan shall be made available for public inspection and comment in the district's administrative offices and on the district website for a minimum of twenty-eight (28) days.	22 PA Code 4.13, 49.16 Pol. 100
Induction Program for School System Leaders	
School system leaders shall complete an induction program which is consistent with the Pennsylvania School Leadership Standards within five (5) years of serving as a school system leader in Pennsylvania for the first time.	SC 1205.5, 1217
School system leaders include principals, vice-principals, assistant principals, Assistant Superintendent, Superintendent and individuals who are converting an administrative certificate from a Level I certificate to a Level II certificate.	SC 1205.5
Professional Education Plan	
The Board shall appoint to the professional education committee parents/guardians and representatives of the community and local businesses. Representatives of administrators, teachers and educational specialists on the professional education committee shall be selected by their respective members.	SC 1205.1 22 PA Code 49.17
The District shall develop and submit a professional education plan to the Secretary of Education for approval every three (3) years, as required by law and regulations. The professional education plan shall be designed to meet the educational needs of the District and its certificated administrative and professional employees; specify approved courses, programs, activities and learning experiences, including training on subjects required by	SC 1205.1 22 PA Code 4.13, 49.17 Pol. 100

POLICY NO. 833 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	
law, regulations and Board policy; and identify approved providers. Prior to approval by the Board and submission to the Secretary of Education, the professional education plan shall be made available for public inspection and comment in the district's administrative offices and on the district website for a minimum of twenty-eight (28) days.	
The Board shall ensure an annual review of the district's professional education plan is conducted to determine if the plan continues to meet the needs of the District, employees, students and community. The professional education committee may recommend amendments to the plan, subject to approval by the Board and the Department of Education.	SC 1205.1
The Board may approve, on a case-by-case basis, specific professional education activities not stated within the district's professional education plan.	SC 1205.2
If the District assumes all costs of credits or hours, the Board may disapprove any course, program, activity or learning experience that is inconsistent with the goals of the professional education plan.	SC 1205.2
Trauma-Informed Approach Education -	
The professional education plan shall include a minimum of one (1) hour of required training in trauma-informed approaches, in accordance with law.	SC 102, 1205.1, 1205.7
The District shall provide certificated administrative and professional employees with training on trauma-informed approaches, in accordance with law and the professional education plan. Training shall address, but shall not be limited to:	SC 102, 1205.7
1. Recognition of the signs of trauma in students.	
2. Best practices for schools and classrooms regarding trauma-informed approaches, including utilizing multi-tiered systems of support.	
3. Recognition of the signs of impact of secondary trauma on school employees and appropriate resources for	

POLICY NO. 833 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	
employees experiencing secondary trauma.	
4. The district's policies regarding trauma-informed approaches.	
5. The district's policies regarding connecting students with appropriate services.	Pol. 146, 209
Training shall be based on evidence-based or evidence-informed programs that meet the needs of the district's local community and reflect current best practices related to trauma-informed approaches.	SC 1205.7 20 U.S.C. 7801
References:	
School Code – 24 P.S. Sec. 102, 517, 1144, 1151, 1205.1, 1205.2, 1205.5, 1205.7, 1217	
State Board of Education Regulations – 22 PA Code Sec. 4.13, 49.16, 49.17	
Strengthening and Improvement of Elementary and Secondary Schools – 20 U.S.C. 7801	
Board Policy – 100, 146, 209	

KEYSTONE OAKS SCHOOL DISTRICT





Policy No.	856

Section **OPERATIONS**

TitleEVALUATION OF EMPLOYEES

Adopted

Last Revised _____

	POLICY NO. 856 EVALUATION OF EMPLOYEES	
Section 1	THIS POLICY SHALL SUPERSEDE POLICIES 313, 412, 512. Purpose	
	Evaluation is a continuing process in which the administrative, professional, and classified employees and the respective supervisors cooperatively identify strengths and weaknesses in an individual's job performance.	
	The objectives of the district evaluation plans for employees are:	
	1. To assess and improve performance.	
	2. To encourage professional growth.	
	3. To promote a behavior that is conducive to building a positive school culture.	
	4. To facilitate attainment of district goals and objectives.	
	5. To identify and suggest ways to build on strengths that enable employees to achieve district goals	
	6. To identify and suggest ways to improve on weaknesses that prevent and employee from achieving district goals.	
	 To inform compensation determinations in accordance with Board policies and applicable contracts and agreements. 	

	POLICY NO. 856 EVALUATION OF EMPLOYEES	
Section 2	<u>Authority</u>	
	The Board shall approve plans for regular, periodic evaluations of administrative, professional and classified employees consistent with applicable collective bargaining agreements, Board Policy and state law and regulations. The Board shall be informed periodically about the results of evaluations.	SC 510, 1108, 1123 22 PA Code 19.1
Section 3	Delegation of Responsibility	
	The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement administrative procedures for evaluating district staff, which shall have the following characteristics:	
	1. Clear and unambiguous in intent and language.	
	2. Establish reasonable standards.	
	3. Apply in a consistent and uniform manner to all employees in the same class.	
	4. Available to employees for review before they are applied.	
	5. Reviewed and updated periodically.	
	6. Referred to the Board for information purposes.	
	7. Consistent with the applicable administrative compensation plan, individual contract, collective bargaining agreement, or Board resolution.	
	Evaluations shall be conducted by administrators and supervisors designated by the Superintendent.	
Section 4	<u>Guidelines</u>	
	Each observation shall be followed by a conference between the evaluator and the employee. Both parties shall sign the evaluation form and retain a copy for their records.	
	Following the conference, the employee shall have the right to submit a written disclaimer of the evaluation; the disclaimer	

POLICY NO. 856 EVALUATION OF EMPLOYEES	
EVALUATION OF EMPLOTEES	
shall be attached to the report.	
The evaluation plan for administrators, professional employees and temporary professional employees shall utilize the appropriate state-approved rating form.	SC 1108, 1123 22 PA Code 19.1
Professional employees are required to be evaluated at least once each year according to PA School Code.	SC 1123
Where possible and applicable, supervisors are encouraged to provide ongoing feedback to their employees. This may include setting and ongoing review of employee objectives and discussion of personal professional development plans. Supervisors should assist employees in setting objectives that are specific, measurable, actionable, realistic and time bound.	
Temporary Professional Employees	
Each temporary professional employee shall be observed by an appropriate supervisor and notified of individual progress and status per school code.	
Administrators responsible for supervising temporary professional employees shall make every effort to assist such staff members in improving deficiencies disclosed by observations and evaluations; and may conduct additional observations and evaluations of employees who are marginally competent.	
The Superintendent shall certify the evaluations of all temporary professional employees as per school code.	
References:	
School Code – 24 P.S. Sec. 510, 1108, 1123	
State Board of Education Regulations – 22 PA Code Sec. 19.1	